

Best Practices for EMC VNX/VNXe and Data Domain with Veeam Availability Suite

Rick Vanover vExpert, MCITP, VCP, Cisco Champion

Neal Condon

VMCE, MCSE



Contents

Executive overview
Introduction
It's all about Availability
Chapter 1 – VNX/VNXe connection
Connecting Veeam Availability Suite to a VNX or VNXe array
VNX and VNXe protection schedules
Using Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots9
Using Veeam Backup from Storage Snapshots
Considerations for the first full backup15
Considerations for incremental backups15
Considerations for replication jobs15
Availability for the Always-On Enterprise made easy with storage integration
Chapter 2 – Data Domain
Data Domain basics
Data Domain protocols
Data Domain data paths
Data Domain administration interfaces17
CIFS protocol
NFS protocol
DD Boost protocol
VTL protocol
Configuring security and firewalls (NFS and CIFS access)
Connecting Veeam Availability Suite to a Data Domain storage appliance
Configuring Data Domain storage without the boost licensing
Considerations for the first full backup
Considerations for incremental backups 24
Considerations for Backup Copy jobs
Considerations for Instant Recovery 25
File-level restores
Author information:
About Veeam Software

Executive overview

Veeam[®] Availability Suite[™] v9 introduces integration with the EMC VNX and VNXe series of hybrid flash storage. This integration provides data centers with new ways to enhance Availability by unleashing the power of storage snapshots for backup, replication and recovery tasks. This white paper highlights the features and setup of this integration.

In addition to the integration with the EMC VNX and VNXe storage families, Veeam Availability Suite v9 delivers enhanced integration with EMC Data Domain storage devices. This integration has been available since the v8 release and covers the new features in v9.

Introduction

When it comes to avoiding data loss, one of the best ways to meet this objective is to leverage storage systems to keep Availability levels high. Veeam introduced **Backup from Storage Snapshots** and **Veeam Explorer™ for Storage Snapshots** to address this need. The **EMC VNX and VNXe series of hybrid flash storage** are the latest storage arrays added to this feature. In this document, we'll address what problem is solved by this integration, as well as how to connect a storage array to Veeam Availability Suite and what to look for to see immediate results.

With Veeam's integration with Data Domain Boost and the new enhancements in Veeam Availability Suite v9, you will see improved performance. In this white paper, you'll learn what makes this type of repository different, how to connect a deduplicating storage appliance to Veeam Availability Suite and how to configure for the optimal performance.

It's all about Availability

When you think about VMware vSphere virtual machines (VMs) running in a data center, you want to keep them available in every sense, including when something doesn't go as expected and in the course of normal operations.

When something doesn't go as expected, you have an opportunity with Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots' to provide high-speed recovery techniques directly from the storage array.

In the course of normal operations, you must meet the challenge of keeping service levels high on running VMs and while you are backing up VMs. Specifically for VMware VMs, a widely used framework is the vSphere APIs for Data Protection (VADP). VADP prescribes a sequence of events to read data from the running VM for a specific use case, such as backup jobs or replicated VMs. However, during this time, the mechanism that coordinates writes to the VM has to manage coordination of these changes when the task completes. Specifically, the VM snapshot process will cause a phenomenon called stun to coordinate the merging of the writes that were preserved elsewhere during the VADP workflow.

Because of this, IT admins take backups at off-hours when the storage systems aren't under as much stress and the impact of snapshot removal stun isn't as significant.

With Backup from Storage Snapshots, the workflow is adjusted in a patented way to reduce the load on the VNX and VNXe family of hybrid flash arrays to allow admins to take backups with no limitations.

Veeam strives to continuously deliver new improvements and capabilities, and our partnership with EMC makes this a reality. Together, we provide fast backups and restores from VNX, VNXe and Data Domain storage for our joint customers.

Chapter 1 – VNX/VNXe connection

Connecting Veeam Availability Suite to a VNX or VNXe array

The process of connecting an array to Veeam Backup & Replication[™] (part of Veeam Availability Suite) is very easy, but a few things need to happen on both the storage array through the EMC Unisphere interface and in Veeam Backup & Replication. For the most current list of requirements for VNX and VNXe connectivity, consult the Help Center technical documentation.

Logically, the connectivity to the VNX or VNXe is done through one or more Veeam proxies (data movers) that have access to the storage provided on the array. The sequence of steps is as shown:

- 1. Veeam will analyze which VMs in the job have disks on a configured VNX or VNXe storage array before triggering a snapshot of the storage volume once all VM snapshots have been created
- 2. Then, Veeam will trigger a vSphere snapshot for all VMs located on the same storage volume (as a part of a vSphere snapshot, Veeam's application-aware processing of each VM is performed normally)
- 3. The proxy then retrieves the changed block tracking (CBT) information for the VM snapshots created on step 2
- 4. Next, Veeam will immediately trigger the removal of the vSphere snapshots on the production VMs
- 5. The Veeam proxy will then mount the storage snapshot to one of the backup proxies connected to the storage fabric
- 6. The Veeam proxy will then read new and changed virtual disk data blocks directly from the storage snapshot and transport them to the backup repository or replica VM
- 7. Finally, Veeam will trigger the removal of the storage snapshot once all VMs are backed up

You can see this process below:



Figure 1: The sequenced flow of Backup from Storage Snapshots

You may be wondering how you can set up this type of data mover so that it doesn't interfere with the production vSphere storage resources. We recommend the using simplified steps below (which the rest of this paper will explain) in the following order:

- Install Veeam Backup & Replication
- Determine if you require additional vSphere backup proxies and create and add them to the Veeam Backup & Replication console if necessary
- Connect the proxies to the storage network (iSCSI, Fibre Channel or NFS)
- Add the proxies to Unisphere and configure in Veeam Backup & Replication

Let's walk through an example where a VNXe running VMs on an NFS share will be connected to a Veeam proxy and Unisphere to provide the backup and restore capabilities from the storage snapshots. The Veeam installation is already in place, with regular backups jobs that are not using the Backup from Storage Snapshots technology. First (only for fibre channel proxies), you'll have to add an entry in the hosts section of Unisphere, as shown below:

	h EMC	Unisobere x						- - X
					h a ath (an a sam an th	Animula neth Anna ma	mont	~ -
~		C Areps://10.0.10	.220/index.numi#icr	=neoArea:	nostivianagementi	//ain:nostivianage	ment	= کر
EN	IC Ui	nisphere						i 🖗 🎙 🖓 🖓
l		Dashboard S	ystem 🇊 Sto	rage	Hosts 🗳	Settings 🔞	Support	
V ¹	/NX >	Hosts > Hosts						
Ho	sts							
		A1	Trees	Manage	Description	Data Changes	Terlinken Millinks/	V 💊 💷
		Name	▲ Type	Manag	Description	Data Storage	Initiator www./	Operating Syst
	~	ssau8.ssa.lab	Automatically Crea	te VMware	Disk Manager	(2) 10.0.0.8, 10.1.1.	iqn.1998-01.com.vm	VMware ESXI 5.5.0
	~	ssa-roso42.ssa.iab	Manually Created I	n manual	Rick vanover proxy	(2) 10.0.2.62, 10.1.	Idn.1991-05.com.ml	VMware ESXI 5.5.0
	2	Veeam_CW-SSA-V9BnR.SSA	ALAT Manually Created I	ic Manual	Automatically create	(2) 10.0.0.203, 10.1	None Configured	
	2	Vecam_SSA-RDS040_SSA_L	Manually Created I	k Manual	Automatically create	(3) 10.0.1.344 10.1	None Configured	
								5 items
	Create	Host Create Subnet	Create Netgroup	Details Re	efresh Delete			
9	Nam	ne: v9DemoVNX A	lerts: 🔔 17 🛛 Jo	bs: 🚸 O	l	Jser: admin	System Time: 11:4	19 (UTC-05:00)

Figure 2: The hosts section of the EMC Unisphere interface provides access to Veeam proxies

When creating a host, you'll add the selected Veeam proxy through the **Create Host** option in Unisphere. iSCSI connectivity will use IQN and TCP/IP addresses. You should configure the host here in a similar fashion to how the VMware ESXi hosts' connectivity is assigned. For Fibre Channel connectivity, the zoning of the Veeam proxy will be the same as that of an ESXi host. This includes with VMFS datastores are intended for use with Veeam's storage integration with the VNX and VNXe arrays.

The figure below shows how a Veeam proxy (which is also the Veeam Backup & Replication console) is connected to Unisphere:

EMC Unisphere ×
← → C 🕼 🔆 (/10.0.16.220/index.html#lcn=neoArea:hostManagementMain:hostManagement:hostDetails&&ctxt=:::ics_c
EMC Unisphere 🕼 🧿 🔾
Dashboard 🖙 System 🗃 Storage 📳 Hosts 🎎 Settings 💫 Support
Victor > Hosts > Vesam_ssa-kUS040.ssa.LAB
General LUNs Data Storage Address Initiators Initiator Paths
Status: R OK
Raile: Vedin_334/RD340.334.246
Type: Manually Created Host
Managed By: Manual
Description: Automatically created by Veeam Backup & Replication
Operating System:
Apply Cancel
📀 Name: v9DemoVNX Alerts: 🚵 17 Jobs: 🔅 0 User: admin System Time: 14:11 (UTC-05:00)

Figure 3: The host entry connects the Veeam proxy to Unisphere

For all storage protocols, the basic rule is to assign connectivity to the Veeam proxy the same way that you would assign a VMware ESXi host to the storage resource. This is because the Veeam proxy will move the data in the course of a backup or replication job directly from the storage snapshot, which requires storage-level access.

The Veeam proxy will move the data on behalf of the backup or replication job from the storage snapshot. Aside from the note above about generally giving access similar to that of an ESXi host, the backup infrastructure must also have the following characteristics:

- 1. Add a properly configured VMware backup proxy to the backup infrastructure
- 2. Add the vCenter Server/ESX(i) host with VMs whose disks are located on the storage system to Veeam Backup & Replication
- 3. Add the storage system to Veeam Backup & Replication

You can read more specific requirements at helpcenter.veeam.com.

Once that is complete, it is time to add the VNXe to the Veeam Backup & Replication console. You perform this task in the storage infrastructure section of the user interface. This section of the user interface is shown below:



Figure 4: Connected arrays will be shown in the storage infrastructure section

To add a storage array to the storage infrastructure associated with this Veeam Backup & Replication console, select which type of array to add (VNXe or VNX as well as block or file storage):

	New VNX(e) Storage	x								
Storage Type Select the type of EMC storage you are adding.										
Storage Type Name Credentials Summary	 EMC VNX (block) Select this option when adding EMC VNX storage used as a block device via ISCSI or Fibre Channel (FC) connectivity. EMC VNX (file) Select this option when adding EMC VNX storage used as a filer (NFS datastores). EMC VNXe Select this option to add EMC VNXe storage with any connectivity. 									
	< Previous Next > Enish Canc	el								

Figure 5: Adding VNX storage as block or file-level storage

The wizard will only inquire for the Unisphere management IP address as well as a username and password. Then, the array is added into Veeam Backup & Replication, and you can use it for

backups, replicas and restore tasks. The storage infrastructure browser will then show the array and storage volumes as well as any snapshots (if present):

VOLUME TOOLS			
E + HOME VOLUME			
Create Delete Snapshot Snapshot Manage Volume Actions			
STORAGE INFRASTRUCTURE	Q Type in an object name to sea	irch for	
 Storage Infrastructure 	NAME 🕹	ESX	SIZE
EMC VNX(e)	The DH-Oracle-Demo	<unknown></unknown>	10.0 GB
✓ ■ v9DemoVNX	SSA-BfSS	ssa01.ssa.lab	34.1 KB
FileSystem00	SSA-VESSDEMO5	<unknown></unknown>	100.0 GB
November_23_VAS9v_002	SSA-VESSDEMO-LINUX	ssa01.ssa.lab	32.0 MB
November_23_VAS9 Created_From_VAS9 UR Strankford	SSA-VESSDEMO-WIN	ssa01.ssa.lab	7.5 GB
 NetApp 			

Figure 6: A support array is shown with three snapshots on the array. Note the VMs for the volume are shown on the right

VNX and VNXe protection schedules

You can set a protection schedule in Unisphere to create storage snapshots automatically on the VNX or VNXe. This is incredibly beneficial for the Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots use case (explained in the subsequent section) because a storage snapshot is taken automatically. Additionally, many storage administrators set storage snapshots up but don't really know a practical way to use them.

You set the protection schedule in Unisphere. The figure below shows an example of a storage snapshot taken every four hours, with the snapshots kept for one day (this isn't a default configuration, but a great way to get more specific restore points throughout the day):



Figure 7: A snapshot schedule will work great with Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots

After you've set the schedule on the VNX or VNXe, you can see its effect in the Veeam Backup & Replication interface. This is where you can use Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots. The figure

VOLUME X Create Delete Rescan napshot Snapshot Manage Volume Actions STORAGE INFRASTRUCTURE Q Type in an object name to search for X Storage Infrastructu
 EMC VNX(e) NAMEL ESX SIZE 10.0 GB DH-Oracle-Demo <Unknown> SSA-BfSS v9DemoVNX ssa01.ssa.lab 34.3 KB ▲ PileSystem00 SSA-VESSDEMO5 100.0 GB <Unknown> SSA-VESSDEMO-LINUX ssa01.ssa.lab 32.0 MB 2015-11-30_08.00.00 2015-11-30_04.00.00 SSA-VESSDEMO-WIN 2015-11-30 00.00.00 2015-11-29_20.00.00 2015-11-29 16.00.00 November_23_VAS9v_002 November_23_VAS9 Created_From_VAS9 HP StoreVirtua NetApp BACKUP & REPLICATION The BACKUP INFRASTRUCTURE IN VIRTUAL MACHINES STORAGE INFRASTRUCTURE

below shows the prescribed storage snapshots kept on the array and are ready for recovery only steps:

Figure 8: Veeam Backup & Replication reads the snapshots on the VNX or VNXe array

Note that each storage array snapshot contains the VMs that were present on the array at the time of the snapshot (every four hours in this example). Additionally, note that storage snapshots generated by the storage array have a different nomenclature, generally following a timestamp. The example selected above is named: 2015-11-30_12:00.00 and corresponds to Nov. 30, 2015, at 12 p.m.

Also, note that based on the settings on the VNX or VNXe, only a certain number of snapshots are kept on the array. From the example below, snapshots are taken every four hours and held for up to 24 hours, so there should be six snapshots present by schedule.

Using Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots

With the array added and snapshots visible in the Veeam Backup & Replication interface, you can perform recovery actions. You should only use this recovery task for VM recovery situations in which you can confirm the integrity of the storage array. For example, if a power failure that turns off the array and the VMs don't come back up correctly, it may not be a good use case for using Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots. A better one is if a VM had a script run against it with an option set incorrectly that deleted a lot of data, instead of exporting a lot of data. You can leverage Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots and take a backup to a different storage (which this paper explains later on). Make sure to consult the User Guide for more information.

Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots provides three categories of restore options, with a total of eight specific options. The three categories are:

- Instant VM Recovery: Boot the VM up from the storage snapshot
- File-level recovery: Provide guest file recovery from both Windows and Linux VMs
- Application recovery: Leverage the Veeam Explorers for SQL Server, SharePoint, Active Directory, Exchange and Oracle

The image below shows the wizard that launches Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots:



Figure 9: Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots starts here

You need to consider a few things before using Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots for a restore. First, you have to determine which host you will leverage to perform the restore as a customization for subsequent tasks. Specifically, you have to select a host, resource pool and VM folder. When this customization is complete, the restore wizard for Veeam Explorer will populate these attributes:

	F	File Level Restore	x								
Location Specify where the la automatically remov	Location Specify where the location where a temporary VM should be registered. This VM will remain powered off, and will be automatically removed once the restore process completes.										
Location Review the restore settings:											
Reason	VM name:	SSA-VESSDEMO-WIN									
Summary	Host name:	ssa01.ssa.lab									
	Resource pool:	Resources									
	VM folder: vm										
	After you click Next, th new datastore, and rej	ne wizard will mount a clone of the selected snapshot to the specified host a gister the VM with virtual infrastructure.	as a								
		< <u>Previous</u> <u>Next</u> <u>Privious</u> <u>Cance</u>	1								

Figure 10: Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots settings are customizable

All of the restore tasks will have the storage snapshot mounted to the specified host to perform file-level recovery, application explorers or entire VM recovery. The session log below shows this process:

	Restore	Session			
VM name: FLR_	[SSA-VESSDEMO-WIN]	Status:	Starting		
Restore type: Guest	File Restore (Windows)	Start time:	11/30/2015 11:24:10	AM	
initiated by: SSA\r	ick.vanover				
Statistic Reason	Parameters Log				
Message				Duration	^
Interactive mode	•				
Mounting restore	e point				
🛇 Checking availa	bility of storage snapshot 2015-1	1-30_12.00.00		0:00:03	
📀 Creating snapsh	ot clone volume			0:00:13	
Adding access p	ermissions to NFS share Veeam	v9DemoVNX	for host ssa01.ssa.lab	0:00:08	
🛇 Adding NFS data	astore /Veeam_v9DemoVNX to	host ssa01.ssa	lab	0:00:19	≡
🔇 Updating VM SS	A-VESSDEMO-WIN configuration	n		0:00:01	
Registering VM 3	SSA-VESSDEMO-WIN on host s	sa01.ssa.lab		0:00:04	
O Mounting VM SS	SA-VESSDEMO-WIN_9d3b25bd	-ec1d-4767-89	46-b329e3f19880 di		
O Mounting VM SS	SA-VESSDEMO-WIN 9d3b25bd	-ec1d-4767-89	46-b329e3f19880 di		V
				Close	

Figure 11: Mounting the storage snapshot to the host is done transparently

This task presents the storage snapshot to the ESXi host so you can complete the recovery task. It's important to note that the wizard will mount the storage snapshot to the host with parts of the same name as the production datastore. In the example above, the NFS datastore mounted (which is the storage snapshot) is named Veeam_v9DemoVNX. The actual datastore is named v9DemoVNX. Also, the VM is registered to the host to allow you to view the file system, and it has an extra string appended to the name of it so it does not interfere with the production VM. Fibre channel and iSCSI datastores are preceded with the characters "snap-" before the original datastore name.

After this step, the rest of the process is similar the restore wizard, which will leverage a backup file. The only difference is that the source is the storage snapshot (and the associated steps to mount it to the host). In the end, the file-level recovery wizard is the same user interface that you would see when restoring from a backup file.

Likewise, the wizard for the Instant VM Recovery option from storage snapshots will present a similar set of options to get a VM to the Instant VM Recovery task when running from a backup. The wizard will allow you to get a VM running as quickly as possible. The two steps of the wizard are shown below:

	Instant Recovery							
Recovery Mode Specify the ultimate	destination for the instantly recovered VM.							
Virtual Machine Restore to the griginal location Restore Point Quickly initiate restore of selected VMs to the original location, and with the original name and settings. This option minimizes the chance of user riput error. Recovery Mode Image: Restore to a grew location, or with different settings Destination Customize restored VM location, and change its settings. The wizard will automatically populate all controls with the original VM settings as the default settings.								
Hestore Heason	Instant Recovery							
Destination Choose ESX server adjust VM settings fi	to run the recovered virtual machine on. You can choose to power on VM automatically, unless you need to at (such as change VM network).							
Virtual Machine Restore Point Recovery Mode	Host: tea01.sea.lab Choose VM folder: Major Event Demo Choose							
Destination	Restored VM name:							
Restore Reason Ready to Apply Recovery	Instructed yminaline. ISSAVESBUMO-WIN-IVMR-VESS Resource pool: Resources P. ③ Resources							
	< <u>P</u> revious <u>N</u> ext > ⊟nish Cancel							

Figure 12: Restoring VMs from storage snapshots takes only a few clicks

Much like the file-level recovery, the storage snapshot mounts directly to the ESXi host by the recovery wizard and the VM inventoried. This presents the VM to the datastore name with Veeam appended to the actual datastore name and the one VM listed as shown below.

🖉 vSphere Web Client 🛛 🗙 🚺									
← → C & bttps://ssalab.am	ust.local:9443/vsphere-client/#exte	ensionId=vsphe	re.core.datast	ore.related;conte	kt=com.vmwa	are.core.mod	el%3A%3ASer	verObjectRef~6A77E468	-7002-4390-
vmware [®] vSphere Web Cli	ent 🔒 🕼							Ŭ∣ rick.vanover@SSA.L	AB v I Help
VCenter	Veeam_v9DemovNX Actions +								=
V 🖸 🗉 👲	Getting Started Summary Monitor N	lanage Related C	Objects						
✓ Ø SSA-VC.SSA.LAB									
	Virtual Machines VM Templates Hosts	Tintri Snapshots							
Direct Attached Storage									
Shared Storage	- 😰 🕨 💷 🗐 🛱 🔞 🎯 A	ctions 👻						📡 📑 (Q. Filter	-)
VSA test storage	Name	1 A State	Status	Provisioned Space	Used Space	Host CPU	Host Mem	Guest Mem - %	Shares Value
NAS-VNX-Demo	B SSA-VESSDEMO-WIN-IVMR-VESS	Powered Off	 Normal 	101.25 GB	7.49 GB	0 MHz	0 MB	0	1000
SAN Res Test LUN									
🗏 Veeam_v9DemoVNX 🗦									
VeeamBackup_10.0.17.3									
🔁 VeeamBackup_AC-ADMIN									
VeeamBackup_BC-BACKU									
UeeamBackup_BC-Backup									
VeeamBackup_BM-MYFIR:									
VeeamBackup_CAA-V8AD!									
UveamBackup_caa-v9prox									
B VeeamBackup_JBM-VEEA									
VeeamBackup_JDGVEEAh									
UveeamBackup_JMF-BR8P:									
VeeamBackup_JMF-Proxy									
veeamBackup_KB-BACKU									
veeamBackup_TS-VEEAM									

Figure 13: In the vSphere Web Client, recovered VMs are run from the storage snapshot

It's important to note that the VM can't stay here forever. We recommend that you migrate the VM from the storage snapshot back to a production datastore via either Storage vMotion or Veeam's Quick Migration, both of which can move the storage associated with the VM from the storage snapshot to a production datastore.

Dismiss the Myth! Why do a backup if we have all these recovery capabilities from the storage snapshot?

It is natural to think that this capability with Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots will be enough to satisfy the Availability requirements of your organization. In reality, this is not the case. You will need to ensure your data is recoverable in the event of a complete failure of that storage system. In that situation, the snapshots and the running VMs are not accessible.

At Veeam, we promote the 3-2-1 Rule, which is a great mindset to use in this context. The 3-2-1 Rule states that you should have three different copies of your data, on two different media, with one of them stored off site.

This is a great mindset as it doesn't lock you into any specific technology and it can address nearly any failure scenario.

Using Veeam Backup from Storage Snapshots

While the storage snapshot is a great recovery technique, a backup to different storage is also needed for the highest levels of Availability. One way to avoid data loss is to leverage the storage snapshot as part of the backup process. Veeam Availability Suite v9 includes the ability to perform backups from the VNX and VNXe family of hybrid flash arrays.

Before we highlight the specific functionality of this aspect of the storage integration, it is important to reiterate the problem we are solving, as described in the beginning of the paper. For VMware environments, taking backups can incur a lot of stress on storage. With the storage integration, the impact VADP provides can be minimized. Specifically, it significantly reduces the amount of time that a VMware snapshot is open. By having the VM snapshot open only briefly, the coordination associated with injecting the written blocks is minimized. This allows you to take a backup at virtually any time, even with the busiest systems.

The best part about using the storage snapshot for the backup engine is that it is enabled by default. The figure below shows this setting as part of a backup or replication job:

Advanced Settings
Backup Maintenance Storage Notifications vSphere Integration
Primary storage integration Primary storage integration Primary Enable backup from storage snapshots Use storage snapshots (instead of VM snapshots) as the data source for this job. Using storage snapshots reduces impact on the production environment from VM snapshot commit.
☐ Limit processed VM count per storage snapshot to 10 ↔ By default, the job will process all included VMs located on the same datastore from a single storage snapshot.
Failover to standard backup Perform standard backup from VM snapshot if backup from storage snapshot fails.
Failover to primary storage snapshot Use primary storage snapshots as the data source if backup from secondary storage snapshot fails.
Save As Default OK Cancel

Figure 14: Storage integration is part of the backup job and is enabled by default

The steps that added the VNX or VNXe to the Veeam Backup & Replication console allow this function to work for Enterprise Plus editions. When a backup or replication job runs from a supported array, the big thing to look for is that the VM snapshot is already removed before the data is copied. This is shown in detail in the figure below:

ob progress:				100%		1 of 1
SUMMARY		DATA		STATUS		
Duration:	0:05:58	Processed:	20.0 GB (100%)	Success:	1 🔿	
Processing rate:	104 MB/s	Read:	17.9 GB	Warnings:	0	
lottleneck:	Source	Transferred:	10.8 GB (1.7x)	Errors:	0	
HROUGHPUT (ALL 1	TIME)					Speed: 136.1 MB
IAME C	TATUS	ACTION				DURATION
	Success	Creating VM	nanchot			0.00.06
3 3 3 A - YE 3 5 Q	Juccess	Collecting dis	k files location data			0:00:00
		Removing Vis	I snanshot			0:00:28
		Required bac	sup infrastructure reso	urces have been assig	ined	
		VM processin	g started at 11/30/201	5 2:11:09 PM		
			CD (10 5 CD			
		VM size: 200.				
		VM size: 200. Saving [NAS-	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES	SDEMO-WIN.vmx	
		VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS-	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf	
		 VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- 	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf ISDEMO-WIN.nvram	
		 VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Using backup 	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS proxy ssa-rds042.ssa.	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf ISDEMO-WIN.nvram d disk 2 data from storage snapshot	
		 VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Using backup Using backup 	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS vNX-Demo] SSA-VESS proxy ssa-rds042.ssa. proxy ssa-rds042.ssa.	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf SDEMO-WIN.nvram d disk 2 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	
		 VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Using backup Using backup Hard disk 1 (1) 	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS vNX-Demo] SSA-VESS proxy ssa-rds042.ssa. proxy ssa-rds042.ssa. 00.0 GB) 7.2 GB read a	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har at 53 MB/s [CBT]	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf ISDEMO-WIN.nvram d disk 2 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	0:02:25
		 VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Using backup Using backup Hard disk 1 (' Hard disk 2 (' 	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS proxy ssa-rds042.ssa. proxy ssa-rds042.ssa. 00.0 GB) 7.2 GB read a 00.0 GB) 10.7 GB read	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har at 53 MB/s [CBT] at 63 MB/s [CBT]	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf SDEMO-WIN.rvram d disk 2 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	0.02:25 0.03:03
		VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Using backup Using backup Hard disk 1 (' Hard disk 2 (' Finalizing	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS proxy ssa-rds042.ssa. 00.0 GB) 7.2 GB read a 00.0 GB) 10.7 GB read	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har ab for retrieving Har at 53 MB/s [CBT] at 63 MB/s [CBT]	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf SDEMO-WIN.nvram d disk 2 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	0.02:25 0:03:03
		 VM size: 200. Saving [NAS: Saving [NAS: Using backup Using backup Hard disk 1 (' Hard disk 2 (' Finalizing Busy: Source 	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] vNX-Demo] SSA-VESS vNX-DEmo] vNX-DEmo] vNX-DEmo] vNX-DEmo] vNX-VESS vNX-DEmo] vNX-DEmo] vNX-VESS vNX-	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har at 53 MB/s [CBT] at 63 MB/s [CBT] etwork 30% > Target	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmxf SDEMO-WIN.rvvram d disk 2 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	0.02.25 0.03.03
		VM size: 200. Saving [NAS: Saving [NAS: Saving [NAS: Using backup Using backup Hard disk 1 (' Finalizing Busy: Source Primary bottle	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS vnxy ssa-rds042.ssal 00.0 GB) 7.2 GB read 00.0 GB) 10.7 GB read 98% > Proxy 71% > Ne eneck: Source	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har t 53 MB/s [CBT] at 63 MB/s [CBT] etwork 30% > Target	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vmm SDEMO-WIN.nvram disk2 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	0.02.25 0.03.03
		 VM size: 200. Saving [NAS: Saving [NAS: Saving [NAS: Using backup Using backup Hard disk 1 (' Hard disk 2 (' Finalizing Busy: Source Primary bottl Network traff 	VNX-Demo] SSA-VESS VNX-Demo] SSA	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES lab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har t 53 MB/s [CBT] at 63 MB/s [CBT] etwork 30% > Target no corrupted blocks	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vman d disk 2 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	0.02.25 0.03.03
		VM size: 200. Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Saving [NAS- Using backup Using backup Hard disk 1 (' Finalizing Busy: Source Primary bottl Network traff Processing fir	VMX-Demo] SSA-VESS VMX-Demo] SSA-VESS VMX-Demo] SSA-VESS VMX-Demo] SSA-VESS proxy ssa-rds042.ssal 00.0 GB) 7.2 GB read 00.0 GB) 10.7 GB read 98% > Proxy 71% > Ni eneck: Source ic verification detected ished at 11/30/2015 2	DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES DEMO-WIN/SSA-VES ab for retrieving Har lab for retrieving Har t 53 MB/s [CBT] at 63 MB/s [CBT] etwork 30% > Target no corrupted blocks ht445 PM	SDEMO-WIN.vmx SDEMO-WIN.vma SDEMO-WIN.nvram disk2 data from storage snapshot d disk1 data from storage snapshot d disk 1 data from storage snapshot	0.02.25 0.03.03

Figure 15: Data is transferred after the VMware snapshot has been removed

Let's explain the importance of the seven selected lines above.

- The first selection is the creation of the VMware snapshot on the VM. This includes any application-aware processing, which will help in subsequent steps and recovery.
- The second line is where the storage snapshot is called on the VNX or VNXe storage array, namely, the collecting disk files location data step.
- The third selection is where the VMware snapshot is removed.
- The fourth through the seventh selections are the task of moving data directly from the storage snapshot for all virtual disks. This is all done after the VMware snapshot has been removed and is application-consistent.

While this VM isn't very large and not all environments are created equal, the notable thing here is that the VMware snapshot was only open for five seconds. There are a number of considerations involved with this technology, which we will outline in subsequent sections.

Considerations for the first full backup

The first full backup will benefit greatly from leveraging the storage snapshot of the VNX or VNXe array. This significantly reduces, the amount of time the VMware snapshot would be open, especially for larger and busier VMs. Consider a multi-terabyte VM: It may take days to do an active full backup of this type of system. If a VMware snapshot is open for a long amount of time—say 36, 48 or more hours—it can degrade the performance of a running VM significantly when the writes are coordinated.

By leveraging Backup from Storage Snapshots, the VMware snapshot is open for just seconds. All of the data movement from the storage snapshot happens when the VMware snapshot is already removed but the VM is properly prepared for the backup.

Considerations for incremental backups

The incremental backup also benefits from the storage integration with the VNX or VNXe array, particularly when compared to other solutions that move data from storage snapshots. With Veeam Backup & Replication, the specific point that aids incremental backups is the preservation of VMware's Changed Block Tracking (CBT) for incremental backups.

This will avoid the phenomenon in which the incremental run of a backup from a storage snapshot would have to read the whole disk geometry to find the blocks that have changed. This is called snap and scan, and it slows down incremental backups. Veeam Backup & Replication preserves the CBT data for incremental backups to increase speeds up to 20x faster than competitive products.

Considerations for replication jobs

Replication jobs will benefit from the storage integration with the VNX or VNXe array as well. This is due to the fact that in most situations, the target of a replication job is a remote data center. Even with the Veeam Built-In WAN Acceleration technology, reducing the time the VMware snapshot is open will significantly help improve service levels on the VM being replicated.

Using the storage integration with the VNX or VNXe arrays in conjunction with Veeam's built-in WAN acceleration technology, building replication jobs off site happens minimal stress on the production VM. This integration is especially beneficial when the option to source a replica from a backup repository (which came in v8) is not used.

Availability for the Always-On Enterprise made easy with storage integration

In this paper, we have toured the usability of VNX and VNXe storage integration with Veeam Availability Suite. The goal of this integration is to enable high-speed recovery through Veeam Explorer for Storage Snapshots and avoid data loss by leveraging Backup from Storage Snapshots technology. The integration with Veeam Availability Suite v9 and the VNX/VNXe arrays easily deliver these benefits.

By unleashing the power of storage snapshots from the VNX and VNXe arrays, new options emerge for backups, replication jobs and recovery tasks.

Chapter 2 – Data Domain

The process of connecting the Data Domain storage to Veeam Backup & Replication—part of Veeam Availability Suite—is very easy. You just have to make sure a few things happen on both the Data Domain storage device via the Data Domain System Manager and in Veeam Backup & Replication. For the most current list of requirements for Data Domain connectivity, review the Help Center technical documentation.

Data Domain basics

In the next few sections, we will review the protocols, data paths and general configurations of the Data Domain storage device.

Data Domain protocols

NFS — Network file system (NFS) clients can have access to Data Domain system directories and Mtrees

CIFS — Common Internet Filesystem (CIFS) clients can have access to Data Domain system directories and Mtrees

VTL — Virtual tape library (VTL) protocol enables backup applications to connect to and manage Data Domain system storage, as if it were a tape library

All of the functionality generally a physical tape library supports is available with a Data Domain system configured as a VTL

Backup software (not the Data Domain system) manages the movement of data from a system configured as a VTL to a physical tape

The VTL protocol is used with Fibre Channel (FC) networking

DD Boost — The DD Boost protocol enables backup servers to communicate with storage systems without the need for Data Domain systems to emulate tape

There are two components to DD Boost:

One component that runs on the backup server

One component that runs on a Data Domain system

NDMP — If the VTL communication between a backup server and a Data Domain system is through NDMP, FC is not required.

When you use NDMP, all initiator and port functionalities do not apply

Data Domain data paths

Data Domain data paths over FC networks - DD Boost, VTL

Data Domain data paths over Ethernet networks – NFS, CIFS and DD Boost

Data Domain administration interfaces

The Data Domain administration interfaces include:

The Data Domain System Manager, which is the graphical user interface (GUI)

The command line interface (CLI) – Access CLI via SSH, serial console, telnet, keyboard and monitor

Data Domain Initial Configuration using Data Domain System Manager – Configuration Wizard: (Command Line – "config setup" Command)

The configuration wizard consists of these sections:

- 1. Licenses
- 2. Network
- 3. File system
- 4. System
- 5. CIFS
- 6. NFS

CIFS protocol

Enter the following:

- 1. Authentication: Workgroup: Enter the CIFS server name, if not using the default
- 2. Active Directory: Enter the full realm name for the system as well as a domain joining credential user name and password. You also have the option to enter the organizational unit name, if you're not using the default
- 3. Share: Enter the share name and directory path. Enter the client name, if you're not using the default
- 4. Summary: Review the summary carefully

NFS protocol

Enter the following:

- Export: Enter a path name for the export. Enter the NFS client server name you want to add to / backup, if you're not using an existing client. Then, select NFS options for the client. These clients receive the default permission — which are read and write permissions with root squashing turned off and mapping of all user requests to the anonymous UID/GID turned off, and it is secure
- 2. Summary: Review the summary carefully

DD Boost protocol

Enter the following:

1. Storage Unit: You have the option change the Storage Unit name. Either select an existing user or create a new user by entering a user name, password and minimum management role, which can be:

Backup (backup-operator): In addition to user privileges, this lets you create snapshots, import and export tapes to a VTL and move tapes within a VTL.

None (none): This is intended only for EMC DD Boost authentication, so you cannot monitor or configure a Data Domain system.

security (security): In addition to user privileges, this lets you set up security-officer configurations and manage other security-officer operators.

sysadmin (admin): This role lets you configure and monitor the entire Data Domain system.

user (user): This lets you monitor Data Domain systems and perform the fast copy operation.

2. Fibre Channel: If DD Boost is to be supported over FC, select the option to configure it. Enter a unique name for the Access Group. (Duplicate access groups are not supported.) Select one or more initiators. You also have the option to replace the initiator by entering a new one. The devices to be used are listed.

VTL protocol

Enter as follows:

- 1. Library: Enter the library name, number of drives, drive model, number of slots and CAPs, changer model name, starting barcode, and, optionally, tape capacity.
- 2. Access Group: Enter a unique name for the Access Group. (Duplicate access groups are not supported.) Select one or more initiators. You also have the option to replace the initiator name by entering a new one. The devices (drives and changer) to be used are listed.
- 3. Summary: Review the summary carefully.

Configuring security and firewalls (NFS and CIFS access)

You should configure the firewall so that only required and trusted clients have access to the Data Domain system.

- By default, anonymous users from known CIFS clients have access to the Data Domain system
- For security purposes, change this option from disabled (the default) to enabled: # cifs option set restrict-anonymous enabled

The following tables show the TCP and UDP ports the Data Domain system uses for inbound and outbound traffic and the services that make use of them.

Please refer to your administrative guide for ports used by Data Domain systems for inbound traffic.

DD OS SW version DD OS SW version	5.0	5.1	5.2	5.4	5.5	5.6	5.7
Boost	2.3	2.4	2.5	2.6	3.0	3.1	3.2
SW DA Date	Dec-10	Now-11	May-12	Jul-13	May-14	Apr-15	Now-15
SW release TSSR notify	Jul-15	Jul-15	Jul-15	Jul-15	May-16	Apr-17	Now-17
SW release TSSR	Jul-16	Jul-16	Jul-16	Jul-16	May-17	Apr-18	Now-18

Table 1: Data Domain OS & Boost matrix

Veeam supports the following Data Domain Boost plug-ins and Data Domain OS versions:

DD Boost plug-in version	DD OS accompanying version	Veeam supported version
2.6	5.2-5.5	8
3	5.4-5.6	9

Table 2: Veeam version support matrix

Connecting Veeam Availability Suite to a Data Domain storage appliance

The process of connecting the deduplicating storage appliance to Veeam Backup & Replication (part of Veeam Availability Suite) is simple: you just need to make sure a few things happen on both the storage through the EMC Data Domain System Manager interface and in Veeam Backup & Replication.

Make sure the following steps are completed prior to creating your first backup repository:

- 1. Install Veeam Backup & Replication
- 2. Determine if additional VMware backup proxies are required and create and add them to the Veeam Backup & Replication console, if necessary
- 3. Connect the proxies to the storage network (iSCSI, Fibre Channel or NFS)
- 4. Configure Data Domain system manager
- 5. Configure Veeam Backup & Replication

For the complete administrative guide, please visit our website: **vee.am/documentation**.

Due to the way Data Domain actively deduplicates, stores and rehydrated block operations within Veeam Backup & Replication may be limited by the overhead that these activities require. This can affect operations designed for production storage and are highly transactional or require random I/O by their nature.

Operations that utilize the Data Domain as a replacement for production storage will be limited by the speed at which the Data Domain can actively deduplicate inbound blocks.

If DDBoost is not licensed then the Data Domain appliance must be added as a repository under conventional methods. It is advised to use a Linux server with the volume mounted via NFS as a relay server to help improve performance. Using SMB share will provide acceptable, but lower performance.

A DD Boost storage unit is the local object that will become a target for the Veeam backup jobs. Within the Data Domain System Manager console, navigate to: Data Management | DD Boost | Storage Units and click Create, as shown below:



Figure 16: Creating a storage device using the Data Domain System Manager

Take note of the newly created storage unit name provisioned because it is required during the initial Veeam repository setup.

The connectivity to the Data Domain is done through one or more Veeam proxies (data movers) that have access to the storage provided. The following steps will walk you through the process:

1. Within the Veeam Backup & Replication server console, locate backup repositories. You can choose the upper left blue highlighted section of the GUI to add repository, or you can right click on the right pane window and select the same there.

2. Name your device.

New Backup Repository				
Name Type in a name and description for this backup repository.				
Name Type Server Repository Mourt Server Review Apply	Name: Data Domain Description: Created by HPDEMO\weeamsupport at 12/9/2015 2:58 PM.			
	< Previous Previous Enish Cancel]		

3. Select **Deduplicating storage appliance.**



4. Choose **EMC Data Domain** as your deduplicating storage.

New Backup Repository				
Deduplicating Storage Specify the deduplication storage appliance you want to add.				
Name Type	EMC Data Domain DD Boost license, and DD OS 5.4 or later are required. If your Data Domain storage does not meet these requirements, go back and choose the Shared Folder option instead.			
Deduplicating Storage Server Repository Mount Server Review	ExaGrid ExaGrid firmware version 4.7 or later is required. If your ExaGrid storage does not meet these requirements, go back and choose the Shared Folder option instead. HP StoreUnce StoreUnce Extended StoreOnce firmware version 3131 or later. If your StoreOnce			
Аррју	StoteUnce Ladays latense and StoteUnce initiate version 3131 of laten in global stotephoe appliance does not meet these requirements, go back and choose the Shared Folder option			
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel			

5. Now enter the Data Domain server name, check the box if you're connected via FC and enter the credentials that have administrative rights to the target storage.

Note: Use the special naming convention for your Fibre channel connection.

The system name is the DNS name or TCP/IP address of the Data Domain server that will house the DD Boost Storage Unit connected in the previous steps. The communication that leverages EMC Data Domain Boost can go over the LAN or FC as indicated earlier. If FC connectivity is to be used, select the option to leverage the FC. This requires that the FC be correctly zoned for the Veeam gateway server to access the storage targets.

New Backup Repository				
EMC Data Domain Specify EMC Data Domain storage name and credentials.				
Name Type Deduplicating Storage	Type in Data Domain server name: dd640-01 hpdemo priv Use Fibre Channel (FC) connectivity DDBoost-over-FC server name can be found on Data Management > DDBoost > Fibre Channel tab			
EMC Data Domain Repository Mount Server Review	Qredentials: Qredentials: Pill ddboost (ddboost, last edited: lt v) Add Manage accounts Enable DDBoost encryption: Medium V Gateway server:			
Apply	Querterio Querterio Image: A glowing server: Veeam9.hpdemo.priv (Backup server) Veeam9.hpdemo.priv (Backup server) V			
< <u>P</u> revious <u>N</u> ext > ⊡nish Cancel				

6. Additionally, the credentials set in the configuration phase of the DD Boost Storage Unit are specified here in the backup repository wizard.

Note: The account must have Data Domain Boost privileges, not just administrative rights.

		Credentials	x
R	Usemame: Password: Description:	ddboost	Browse
	ddboost	ОК	Cancel

You also have the choice to select your gateway server specifically or leave it set to automatic selection. A critical decision in this wizard is the selection of a gateway server. You should place the gateway server in all situations from a network perspective as close as possible (from a latency perspective) to the actual Data Domain server in all situations. This is because the gateway server will send the traffic to the Data Domain server and communicate with the DD Boost Storage Unit. Backup (or backup copy job) data flow may originate in other sites or networks, but the gateway server role for the Data Domain server should be as close as possible to the appliance.

Configuring Data Domain storage without the boost licensing

If your Data Domain is not licensed for DDBoost, you have two primary options for connecting to the appliance.

CIFS

- Launch the creation of a new Repository. On the Type tab, select CIFS. http://helpcenter.veeam.com/backup/80/vsphere/repository_launch.html http://helpcenter.veeam.com/backup/80/vsphere/repository_type.html
- On the next tab, configure the path to which the Repository will write and set credentials to access that share.
 For more information, see the second section named **Shared Folder** on this page: http://helpcenter.veeam.com/backup/80/vsphere/repository_server.html
- 3. On the Repository tab in the advanced section, enable **Decompress backup data blocks before storing.**
- 4. Unless your environment requires you to specify a different vPower NFS server, you can use the default settings for the last steps in the repository configuration.

NFS

You will need to configure the Data Domain for NFS access and a Linux server to mount the volumes from the Data Domain via NFS. Please refer to the following links for further information regarding connecting Linux to the Data Domain via NFS:

http://forums.veeam.com/veeam-backup-replication-f2/veeam-datadomain-and-linux-nfs-share-t8916.html

http://tsmith.co/2014/veeam-and-datadomain

- Launch the creation of a new repository. On the Type tab, select Linux. http://helpcenter.veeam.com/backup/80/vsphere/repository_launch.html http://helpcenter.veeam.com/backup/80/vsphere/repository_type.html
- 2. On the next tab, select the Linux server that you need to connect to. If it is not present in the list, select **Add New**
- On the Repository tab, specify the path on the Linux server that leads to where you mounted the Data Domain via NFS. In the advanced section on this tab, enable Decompress backup data blocks before storing. http://helpcenter.veeam.com/backup/80/vsphere/repository_repository.html
- 4. Unless your environment requires you to specify a different vPower NFS server, you can use the default settings for the last steps in the repository configuration.

Considerations for the first full backup

When data is sent to the Data Domain storage, it uses source-side deduplication, depending upon the Distributed Segment processing option enabled in the Data Domain server. Blocks from the virtual disks of VMs that already reside on the device will not be transferred. A great visual representation of this can be seen in our backup windows statistics:

This is important for a number of reasons. Most importantly, this is where you will see the bottleneck analysis. When Data Domain Boost is enabled, we see that the target is likely not the bottleneck.

Note: this is not the case when running on high performance systems.

- Veeam built-in deduplication and compression may be happening by default, but don't worry — when we set up a Data Domain Boost enabled repository, we will ensure that the data is decompressed as it is written to the deduplicated target.
 - In the data section, the read count is a metric of the source data mover. Here, the transferred count is a metric of data transfer between source and target data movers. Data Domain Boost kicks in between target data mover and the Data Domain system. Since it directly affects "Target" bottleneck detector it will indirectly affect the Transferred counter. However, you'll see backup times are quicker with Data Domain Boost.
 - We have a number of different lab environments here at Veeam, but I noticed that this environment started performing better with Data Domain Boost as I used it more. Why? Because more data has been ingested. There is now more source data that is deduplicated, and as more deduplication hits come in, they are deduplicated before they are even transferred.
 - Whether there are VMs that are in more than one backup job or if VMs are deployed from a template, similar blocks will benefit from Data Domain Boost over time. Either way, this feature will help on ingest to the Data Domain over time, making backups perform better.
 - Get up to 10x faster backup performance with the new per-VM backup file chains option, which enables multiple write streams by leveraging parallel VM processing in Veeam Availability Suite v9.

Considerations for incremental backups

When we talk about backup jobs specifically, you should note that reverse incremental backups are not supported.

Use of the forever incremental backup method is only advisable in situations where you have less than 30 restore points. If you plan to have more restore points, you should enable the Active Full option and configure it to create a new active full monthly. This will reduce restore times by segmenting each month into its own backup chain.

Considerations for Backup Copy jobs

You can create a traditional Veeam replication job or ideally leverage the Veeam backup copy job, because it provides more granular control than just copying the entire backup files. For example, you can choose individual VMs to copy (not the entire backup files), do many-jobs-to-one-backup-file type of copy and so on. It is also storage agnostic, so you can use it to get data to and from Data Domain easily.

Now of course, we also have customers who are using native Data Domain replication to copy the entire backup files as they are, but we do not control this native replication in our upcoming product release.

You can improve local backup copy performance and reduce the load on deduplication appliances by eliminating data rehydration with new support for active full backups with backup copy jobs in Veeam Availability Suite v9.

Considerations for Instant Recovery

The aforementioned limitations of a Data Domain appliance can adversely affect Instant Recovery, and, depending on the type of VM being restored, highly transactional VMs will require more IOPS from the Data Domain than others. With this in mind, you can expect to only be capable of running only from one to a few Instant Recoveries simultaneously, depending on Data Domain mode. Instantly recovered VMs started from a backup file stored on a Data Domain may react or start slowly because the majority of their read operations will be hindered by the limited rehydration performance of the Data Domain.

For vSphere users, it is highly advised that the user select to have virtual disk updates redirected to a highperformance datastore when performing an Instant Recovery. This will assist in improving some performance.

We also advise advised that VMware users start the migration steps as soon as possible if they intend to make the VM permanent.

Performing instant VM recoveries will consume Data Domain system resources, which may affect performance of other processes (i.e. ingest, replication, cleaning, etc.).

For better Instant Recovery performance, we recommend you use the smallest block size (under the storage optimization setting):

http://helpcenter.veeam.com/backup/80/vsphere/backup_job_advanced_storage_vm.html.

- Please note that for a backup job targeted at Data Domain, we recommend that you have the largest block size for better performance.
- For better Instant Recovery performance, we recommend that you have fewer VMs in the job.
- The longer an incremental chain is the more read operations are performed when restoring from an incremental restore point.

File-level restores

The backup browser may take longer than usual to open if an increment is selected. Furthermore, that increment's distance from the full restore point can also cause a delay when opening the backup browser.

Navigating between folders within the backup browser may take additional time because each folder's content must retrieved from the backup file in order to display it.

For more information regarding backup job settings, please refer to http://www.veeam.com/kb1745.

In conclusion, the new integration with EMC Data Domain Boost in Veeam Availability Suite v9 enables source-side deduplication and data in-flight encryption over the WAN for faster, more secure backups to off-site EMC Data Domain appliances.

Author information:



Rick Vanover (vExpert, MCITP, VCP, Cisco Champion) is a senior product strategy manager for **Veeam Software** based in Columbus, Ohio. Rick is a popular blogger, podcaster and active member of the virtualization community. Rick's IT experience includes system administration and IT management; with virtualization being the central theme of his career recently. Follow Rick on Twitter **@RickVanover** or **@Veeam**.



Neal Condon (VMCE, MCSE) is a Solutions Architect for **Veeam Software** based in Sturbridge, Massachusetts. He has spent more than 27 years in the information technology field. Follow Neal on Twitter **@NealCondon** or **@Veeam**.

About Veeam Software

Veeam[®] recognizes the new challenges companies across the globe face in enabling the Always-On Business[™], a business that must operate 24/7/365. To address this, Veeam has pioneered a new market of *Availability for the Always-On Enterprise*[™] by helping organizations meet SLAs for recovery time and point objectives (RTPO[™]) of less than 15 minutes for all applications and data, through a fundamentally new kind of solution that delivers high-speed recovery, data loss avoidance, verified recoverability, leveraged data and complete visibility. Veeam Availability Suite[™], which includes Veeam Backup & Replication[™], leverages virtualization, storage, and cloud technologies that enable the modern data center to help organizations save time, mitigate risks, and dramatically reduce capital and operational costs.

Founded in 2006, Veeam currently has 37,000 ProPartners and more than 183,000 customers worldwide. Veeam's global headquarters are located in Baar, Switzerland, and the company has offices throughout the world. To learn more, visit http://www.veeam.com.





NEW Veeam[®] Availability Suite[™] v9

RTPO[™] <15 minutes for ALL applications and data



Learn more and preview the upcoming v9 release

vee.am/v9